The Study of Physicochemical Properties of Edible Oil and Heated Oil and Evaluation of The Changes of Oil Characteristics After Reheating



Sushmita Roy Chowdhury

Roll No.: 0121/18 Registration No.: 1022 Session: January-June, 2021

A thesis submitted in the partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of Masters in Public Health (MPH)

One Health Institute Chattogram Veterinary and Animal Sciences University Chattogram-4225, Bangladesh

February, 2023

Authorization

I hereby declare that I am the author of this thesis. I authorize the Chattogram Veterinary and Animal Sciences University (CVASU) to grant this thesis to other individuals or institutions for the purpose of scholarly research. I again authorize the CVASU to reproduce the thesis by photocopying or by other means, in total or in part, at the request of other institutions or individuals for the purpose of scholarly research.

I, the undersigned, and author of this work, declare that the **electronic copy** of this thesis provided to the CVASU Library, is an accurate copy of the print thesis submitted, within the limits of the technology available.

Sushmita Roy Chowdhury February, 2023

The Study of Physicochemical Properties of Edible Oil and Heated Oil and Evaluation of The Changes of Oil Characteristics After Reheating

Sushmita Roy Chowdhury

Roll No.: 0121/18 Reg. No.: 1022 Session: January-June 2021

This is to certify that we have examined the above Master's thesis and have found that is complete and satisfactory in all respects, and that all revisions required by the thesis examination committee have been made

••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

(Dr. Md Abdul Alim) Professor Department of Pathology and Parasitology Supervisor (Monsur Ahmad) Assistant Professor Department of Applied Chemistry and Chemical Technology Co- Supervisor

.....

(Prof. Dr. Sharmin Chowdhury) Director One Health Institute

Chattogram Veterinary and Animal Sciences University

Chattogram-4225, Bangladesh

February, 2023

PLAGIARISM VERIFICATION

Title of Thesis: The Study of Physicochemical Properties of Edible Oil and Heated Oil and Evaluation of The Changes of Oil Characteristics After Reheating

Name of the Student: Sushmita Roy Chowdhury

Roll number: 0121/18

Reg. no: 1022

One Health Institute

Supervisor: Dr. Md Abdul Alim

This is to report that as per the check% of the content of the above thesis is stated to be plagiarized and is covered/not covered as per plagiarism policy and institutions issued from CASR, Chattogram Veterinary and Animal Sciences University. The report has been sent to the coordinator, CASR via email.

The thesis may/may not be considered for the evaluation.

Dr. Md Abdul Alim

Professor

Department of Pathology and Parasitology

Faculty of Veterinary Medicine

Acknowledgement

All praises to the most graceful, almighty God for blessing me with the strength, aptitude, patience and enabled me to pursue higher education and to complete the thesis for the degree of Masters in Public Health (MPH) of Science (MS) under One Health Institute, Chattogram Veterinary and Animal Sciences University, Chattogram, Bangladesh. I pay sincere gratitude to Professor Dr. A.S.M Lutful Ahasan, Vice-Chancellor, Chattogram Veterinary and Animal Sciences University (CVASU) for giving special opportunity and providing such research facilities. I convey my gratitude and debt of gratitude to my principal advisor and research supervisor Dr. Md Abdul Alim (Professor, Department of Pathology and Parasitology, Chattogram Veterinary and Animal Sciences University, Chattogram, Bangladesh) for his guidance and support. His constant support, patience, valuable suggestions, useful criticism, constant encouragement and inspiration enabled me to overcome all hardship throughout this research and in preparation of the thesis. I feel proud in expressing my regard and immense indebtedness to **Professor Dr. Sharmin Chowdhury, Director**, One Health Institute and my respected all teachers for their kind co-operation, valuable suggestions and constructive criticism throughout the research period and for the thesis work. I am also thankful to my Co-Supervisor Monsur Ahmed (Assistant Professor, Dept. of Applied Chemistry and Chemical Technology) for his cordial support and inspiration in my research and analytical works I would like to express my gratitude and cordial thanks to Research and Extension of Chattogram Veterinary and Animal Sciences University, Bangladesh for the financial help supplies during the study period. I would like to express cordial thanks to my loving friends and well-wishers for their cooperation, cheerfulness and inspiration during the course of this study. I also express my heartfelt respects and thanks to my beloved parents and family members for their understanding, inspirations, moral support, kindness and blessings, forbearance and endless love to complete this study.

The Author February, 2023

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CHAPTER 01	1
Introduction	1
CHAPTER 02	4
Review of Literature 2.1 Oils and Fats	
2.2 Edible Oils and its health impact	4
2.3 Sunflower seed oil	5
2.4 Olive oil	6
2.5 Soyabean Oil	7
2.6 Mustard Oil	8
2.7 Palm oil	8
2.8 Frying oil effect on human health	9
CHAPTER 3	.10
MATERIALS AND METHODS	10
3.1 Collection of Oil Samples	
3.2 Sample Preparation	.10
3.3 Determination of Physicochemical Properties of Oils	
3.4 Statistical Analysis	.14
CHAPTER 4	.15
RESULTS	15
4.1 Soyabean oil	
4.2 Mustard oil	
4.3 Olive oil	.16
4.4 Palm oil	.17
4.5 Sunflower Oil	.18
CHAPTER 5	.19
DISCUSSION	
5.2 Moisture Content	.19
5.3 Saponification value	20

5.4 Peroxide Value	
5.5 Acid Value	21
5.6 Iodine value	
5.7 Possible Impact on Public Health	
СНАРТЕК 6	23
CONCLUSION	22
CONCLUSION	23
CHAPTER 7	24
Recommendation and Future aspect	24
REFERENCES	
APENDICES	
BRIEF BIOGRAPHY	40

LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

Abbreviations	Elaboration
%	Percentage
0 C	Degree Celsius
AOAC	Association of Official Analytical Chemists
CHD	Coronary Heart Disease
CVD	Cardio Vascular Disease
MUFA	Mono Unsaturated Fatty Acid
PUFA	Poly Unsaturated Fatty Acid
ppm	parts per million
SFA	Saturated Fatty Acid
SFO	Sunflower Oil

List of Tables

Table 1 : Physicochemical properties of fresh, heated and reheated Soyabean oil sample15
Table 2: Physico-chemical properties of fresh, heated and reheated Mustard oil sample16
Table 3: Physico-chemical properties of fresh, heated and reheated Olive oil
Table 4: Physico-chemical properties of fresh, heated and reheated Palm oil17
Table 5: Physico-chemical properties of fresh, heated and reheated Sunflower oil

Abstract

The physicochemical properties of edible oils are crucial elements of the human diet and play a vital role in protecting health and preventing disease. The study focused on the effects of heating and reheating on oil quality, which is of great interest to both the consumers and food industry.

In this investigation, we considered analyzing samples of sunflower oil, soybean oil, mustard oil, olive oil and palm oil which are commonly used in food preparation. The samples were heated and reheated at specific temperatures and times, and their physical and chemical properties such as specific gravity, moisture content, saponification value, peroxide value, acid value and iodine value were measured using various analytical techniques.

This thesis provides valuable insights into the physicochemical properties of edible oils and changes that occur when oil is reheated. Changes in the physicochemical properties of edible oils heated and reheated condition can lead to a loss of nutritional value and safety concerns, such as increased oxidative stress and inflammation, which have been linked to life threatening diseases like cancer and cardiovascular disease.

Our findings indicated the importance of using fresh oil whenever possible and avoiding reheating whenever feasible, as this can help maintain the quality and safety of the food. Moreover, the development of new, more stable varieties of edible oil may be necessary to reduce the risks associated with oil degradation and rancidity.

We also recommended further extensive research to explore the effects of different types of oils and cooking methods on oil quality, as well as the long-term health effects of consuming degraded or rancid oils.

Keywords: Edible oils, fresh oils, heated oils, reheated oils, physicochemical properties.

Chapter 01 Introduction

Oil is generally a triglyceride that remains in liquid form in room temperature. Oil is called triglycerides as they are esters composed of fatty acid and glycerol (a trihydroxy alcohol). A typical mixed triglyceride is one made from naturally occurring fats and oils that has two or three separate fatty acid components. A triglyceride is referred to as an oil if it is a liquid at 25 °C and a fat if it is a solid at that temperature. These variations in melting points are a result of variations in the amount of unsaturation and carbon atoms present in the constituent fatty acids. Triglycerides derived from animals are often solids, but those derived from plants are typically oils. As a result, we frequently refer to vegetable oils and animal fats. Edible vegetable oils are foodstuffs which are composed primarily of glycerides of fatty acids being obtained only from vegetable sources. They may contain small amounts of other lipids such as phosphatides, of unsaponifiable constituents and of free fatty acids naturally present in the fat or oil (Codex Alimentarius, 1999).

Bangladesh, a rapid developing country of south Asia, is one of the most densely populated country in the world. At present Bangladesh has about 165 million people with a population density of 1,156.84 people per square kilometer (Population and Housing Census, 2022). Due to rapid industrialization in this country people are moving towards more hectic lifestyle day by day. For this very reason fast foods and fried foods are becoming more and more popular in this country. Many small stalls are situated almost in every corner of Bangladesh which serves fried foods such as Singara, Samosa, Pakora etc. These snack items are very popular among the peoples of Bangladesh specially among the students and office people. But the stall owners and workers have little knowledge about the effect of oil on human health. Moreover, to save money and time they use the same oil to fry food again and again. Recent Russia-Ukraine war and Covid 19 pandemic situation has increased the price of edible oil rapidly and it is increasing more day by day (Ben Hassen et al., 2022; Jagtap et al., 2022; Allam et al.,2022). Hence, in order to save money, the usage of warmed oil for frying food has expanded more than ever in recent years. Again, they keep this oil in an open place after use. The immediate reaction of atmospheric oxygen with the lipids and other organic molecules in these oils results in structural breakdown in the oil, which can lower food quality and be very dangerous for human health (Bhattacharya et al., 2008).

Nonetheless, vegetable oils are crucial for world nutrition, and different types of edible oils are produced in various grades in response to regional need (Tesfaye & Abebaw, 2016). A study conducted by Jambunathan et al. in 2008 shows that, the value of the oil and its ability to maintain its consistency are extremely important for the consumer's preferred use, which is typically as an ingredient in culinary preparation (Bou et al., 2012). All types of oil have some physicochemical characteristics which can be used to determine both its nutritional and physical qualities. These characteristics include iodine value, peroxide value, saponification value, free fatty acid, color appearance, etc.

When vegetable oils are used for an extended period of time, these oils should be handled carefully as they are susceptible to oxidative deterioration, which can reduce their shelf life. Oxygen reacts with unsaturated fatty acids and creates hydro per-oxides which are considered the main product of oxidation reaction. This produced hydro peroxides amount is used to determine peroxide value of oil (Ahmad Tarmizi & Ismail, 2008). The amount of oil damage is assessed using the peroxide value. Oils are regarded as being in a low oxidation condition if their peroxide levels are between 1 and 5 mEq/Kg. Whereas oils with per-oxide values between 5 and 10 mEq/Kg are regarded as being in an average oxidation condition (O'Brien, 2008). The acid value is often used as an indicator of the general condition and helps to evaluate whether it is safe to consume or not (Pardeshi, 2020). Iodine value is used to determine the degree of unsaturation of vegetable oils (Kyriakidis & Katsiloulis, 2000). The higher degree of unsaturation of oil means it will be easily absorbed into our body. Saponification value is very important for estimation of average molecular weight of edible oil sample (Luzzi & Gerraughty, 1964). Moisture content and Specific gravity helps us to determine the rate of oil decomposition and degree of unsaturation of oil, respectively (Mengistie et al., 2018a).

Frying of oil can create new compounds and these compounds can change the physical and chemical parameters of frying oil (Choe & Min, 2007; Dobarganes et al., 2000; Gertz & Matthäus, 2008). Because most of the fried foods' lipid content is derived from the frying oil, which is absorbed during the process. The main effect is a change in the frying oil's quality, which has an impact on the quality of the fried food. So, the overall

nutritional characteristics of the fried products can be modified according to the type of frying oil selected (Gertz & Matthäus, 2008). Therefore, considering above findings, the current investigation has been undertaken to determine the physical and chemical properties of five edible oils (sunflower oil, soyabean oil, mustard oil, olive oil and palm oil), heated oils and reheated oils of the same and effect of heating upon these oil samples. The specific objectives of this investigation included as follows:

1. To determine the changes of physicochemical characteristics (e.g. specific gravity, moisture content, saponification value, peroxide value, acid value and iodine value)

2. To make a comparison of different types of oil after heating and reheating.

Chapter 02

Review of Literature

2.1 Oils and Fats

Oils and fats are basically subsection of lipids which differs from each other from being liquid or solid at ambient room temperature. The physical properties of oil and fat mainly depends upon the number of fatty acids that they contain. Fatty acids, triacylglycerols and lipid soluble compounds are the component of natural oils and fats (Gunstone, 2009). Highest quality oils and fats are generally tasteless, odorless, pure, and resistant to oxidation. However, during preparation, storage, and usage oxidation can happen to oils and fats. Despite the fact that oil processing is partially meant to eliminate or destroy oxidized products or elements that may trigger or enhance oxidative processes, some processing procedures, such as caustic refining and bleaching, may encourage oxidation. Oxidative reactions can decompose and form compounds during storage which are responsible for a rancid odor and taste (Chow & Gupta, 1994). Fatty acids, which are found in oils and fats, are vulnerable to attack from a variety of sources, including light and oxygen (Choe & Min, 2007). Specifically, the binding of fat with proteins and carbohydrates can affect the overall textural and other aspects of food quality. For food formulations, proteins' capacity to absorb and retain fat as well as interact with lipids in emulsions and other food systems is crucial (Zayas & Zayas, 1997). At the time the oil is being fried, the presence of oxygen, moisture, trace elements, and free radicals can cause a variety of chemical reactions, including thermoxidation, hydrolysis, polymerization, isomerization, and cyclization. These reactions ultimately cause the frying oil to break down and produce monomeric, polymeric, primary, and secondary oxidative products. These products affect the quality of oil and fried products (Andrikopoulos et al., 2002). The oxidized product of fatty acids brings off-flavors and odors (hydrolytic rancidity) to the fried food items (Lin et al., 2001).

2.2 Edible Oils and its health impact

Edible oils which are basically vegetable oils are used in cooking as well as in conventional medicine to treat different disease conditions such as colds, coughs,

bronchitis, edema, and burns. Additionally, these oils are necessary for the production of prostaglandins, which serve a variety of important roles in the body (Ilyas, 2016). Vegetable oils are crucial to human nutrition because they supply necessary fatty acids, energy, and help the body absorb fat-soluble vitamins (Grace et al., 2008). Although it's a common misconception that fat should be avoided, certain edible oils have a significant positive impact on cardiovascular health when consumed as a dietary supplement (Bester et al., 2010a).

According to some experts, a person's health largely depends on the type of lipids they consume because larger intakes of trans and saturated fats have been linked to negative health outcomes like inflammation and insulin resistance and increase in LDL (lowdensity lipoprotein) cholesterol, develop risk of diabetes and cardiac death (Bendsen et al., 2011; Mozaffarian et al., 2006). Edible oils are important source of natural antioxidant which reduce the oxidative stress in our cells. Some major antioxidant found in edible oils are tocopherols, tocotrienols and carotenoids (Chow, 2007). By regulating the generation of eicosanoid, dietary lipids also play a significant part in maintaining the body's essential processes (Lands, 2019; Lees, 2020). Oils have diverse biological effects in various circumstances, particularly in people with dyslipidemia and type 2 diabetes (Dineshkumar et al., 2009). Vegetable oil contains omega-6 and omega-3 polyunsaturated fatty acids (PUFAs), both of which are crucial for maintaining good health since they serve as building blocks for various molecules like prostaglandins, leukotrienes, thromboxanes, and lipoxins (Das, 2006). Despite the fact that essential fatty acid deficiency has rarely been observed in people, it is believed to be a factor in dermatitis, renal hypertension, issues with mitochondrial activity, CVDs, type 2 diabetes, delayed brain development, arthritis, melancholy, and a weakened immune system (Simopoulos, 1999).

2.3 Sunflower seed oil

This refinery method of sunflower seed oil produces yellow oil that is high in PUFA, the most abundant of which is linoleic acid (60-70%). The primary MUFA and SFA are oleic acid and stearic acid, respectively. Depending on the desired product, SFO can have different amounts of MUFA and SFA (AbuGhazaleh et al., 2007; Aguilera et al., 2004; Eder et al., 2006a; Larsen et al., 1999; Navarro et al., 1992). Commercially there are three main forms of SFO available. The first is a high-PUFA SFO which consists

of up to 75 % PUFA. The second type is a high-MUFA SFO that contains up to 45% MUFA, and the third type is a high-stearic acid SFO that may contain up to 14% stearic acid. The most prevalent type of SFO is high-PUFA SFO. While high-stearic acid SFO is mostly employed in industrial processes, high-MUFA SFO is commonly used in cooking (Bester et al., 2010b). SFO contains naturally occurring vitamin E in the form of tocopherol (AbuGhazaleh et al., 2007; Aguilera et al., 2004; Eder et al., 2006a). SFOprovided omega-6 PUFA may have an important function in inflammation management since it is used to build pro-inflammatory prostaglandins (Das et al., 2008; Navarro et al., 1992; Simopoulos, 1991). Some research shows that SFO has been demonstrated to modify the serum lipid profile, with the main finding being a reduction in total cholesterol and LDL-cholesterol (Girardet et al., 1977; Lambert et al., 2007; Nydahl et al., 1994). Since SFO is deficient in micronutrients, hydroxytyrosol is sometimes added to commercial mixes to boost antioxidant content. Hydroxytyrosol is a polyphenol that has been found in this study to boost immunity by enhancing leucocyte glutathione peroxidase activity (Baeza et al., 2008; Díaz et al., 2008). Linoleic acid is required for optimal immunological response, and a lack of EFA inhibits B and T cell-mediated responses. SFO can supply enough linoleic acid for immune response maintenance (Meydani et al., 1991).

2.4 Olive oil

Olive oil is a yellowish oil that contains a lot of monounsaturated fatty acids (MUFAs), with oleic acid making up 72–79% of the total. ((Newmark, 1997; Owen et al., 2000; Quiles et al., 2004). As compared to PUFA, MUFA are less prone to oxidation. This, in turn, increases the availability of antioxidants in their active form and improves the stability of olive oil (Diniz et al., 2004; Eder et al., 2006b; Newaz et al., 2003; O'Farrell & Jackson, 1997; Owen et al., 2000; Turpeinen et al., 1998; Wahle et al., 2004). Olive oil contains two antioxidant micronutrients called polyphenols and squalene (Gómez Caravaca et al., 2005; Lercker & Rodriguez-Estrada, 2000; Newmark, 1997; Owen et al., 2000; Quiles et al., 2004). The phenolic component concentration of virgin olive oil is greater than that of ordinary olive oil (approximately 230 mg/kg, usual range 130-350 mg/kg) (Owen et al., 2000; Tuck & Hayball, 2002). Tyrosol, hydroxytyrosol, oleuropein, and ligstroside are the most important phenols present in olive oil (Gómez Caravaca et al., 2005; Owen et al., 2000; Perona et al., 2006). Tyrosol and hydroxytyrosol, which make up 30% of the total amount of polyphenols in olive oil,

are the most common polyphenols (Owen et al., 2000). Oleuropein and ligstroside are hydrolyzed during the preservation of the olive oil to produce tyrosol and hydroxytyrosol (Romero et al., 2007). The catechol group found in tyrosol, hydroxytyrosol, and oleuropein has been demonstrated to have antioxidant action (Gómez Caravaca et al., 2005; Montedoro et al., 1993; Owen et al., 2000; Visioli et al., 2002). According to studies, the most powerful antioxidants in olive oil are hydroxytyrosol and oleuropein, which may have greater antioxidant effects than vitamin E (Owen et al., 2000; Perona et al., 2006). Squalene is a hydrocarbon that is thought to be particularly abundant in olive oil; it makes up around 0.7 percent of its composition (Newmark, 1997; Owen et al., 2000). It may be present in other foods and oils in amounts ranging from 0.002 to 0.03%. Squalene reduces cholesterol formation by inhibiting 3-hydroxy-3-methylglutaryl-coenzyme A (HMG-CoA) reductase and acts as an antioxidant by quenching singlet oxygen radicals (Newmark, 1997; Relas et al., 2000). Secoiridoids, phenyl-ethyl alcohols, and lignans are some of the other micronutrients found in olive oil. Several micronutrients have been linked to antioxidant activity as well, though not to the same extent as oleuropein and hydroxytyrosol (Carrasco-Pancorbo et al., 2005). Consuming olive oil may lower your risk of developing degenerative illnesses including cancer and coronary heart disease, according to research (Keys et al., 1986). The prevailing consensus is that olive oil reduces oxidative stress (Diniz et al., 2004; Kritchevsky, 2000; Quiles et al., 2004; Theriault et al., 1999). Studies have showed that using more olive oil lowers blood pressure in people (Ferrara et al., 2000; Hassan Gilani et al., 2005; Keys et al., 1986; Manna et al., 2004).

2.5 Soyabean Oil

Only palm oil is produced in greater quantities and is sold more often than soybean oil. The commerce in palm fruits, which are harvested as soon as possible at the place of collection, is not analogous to the trade in soybeans, which are also widely traded. According to Cartter and Hopper's (1942) research, the soybean seed's oil content is primarily a varietal trait, and environment and variety have a relatively similar impact on the oil's iodine level. The amount of calcium present in the seed produced by a particular variety was considerably impacted by temperature levels. When soybeans were cultivated at high temperatures, there was almost always a high calcium content. The seed's total ash, phosphorus, and potassium contents appeared to be affected by soil

fertility and type more so than seed variety or climatic variations (Cartter & Hopper, 1942). Small, stable oil bodies compose from 18% to 22% of the total mass of soybeans. These structured triacylglycerol droplets, which are rich in small bioactive components, are what these oil bodies are. These are encircled by a phospholipid monolayer composed of seven oleosins, two caleosins, and one steroleosin. (Zhao et al., 2022). A study by shows that reduced risk of coronary heart disease and improved general health are two major benefits of soybean oil (Messina et al., 2021).

2.6 Mustard Oil

One of the most significant vegetable oils used for deep-frying is mustard oil. Black mustard (Brassica nigra), brown Indian mustard (Brassica juncea), and white mustard can all be used to make mustard oil (Brassica hirta). Since ally isothiocyanate is present, it has a strong smell (Nayak et al., 2016). The Brassica nigra plant, which is used to make mustard oil, has a high amount of protein (30%), calcium (5%), phytins (5%), phenolics (5%), and natural antioxidants (5%). Mustard oil is good for the heart because of its high monounsaturated fatty acid content and balanced polyunsaturated fatty acid ratio. Since mustard oil has the fewest saturated fatty acids, it is safe for people with heart issues. Furthermore, glucosinolate, which possesses antibacterial, antifungal, and anticarcinogenic properties, is a component of mustard oil. These characteristics are the cause of many of the mustard oil's therapeutic advantages (Yadav & Kumari, 2013). Its medical benefits include preventing the development of cancer in the body, lowering body temperature, treating fungal and bacterial skin infections, making a tasty appetizer, and acting as a body toner. Also, reducing the adhesive impulses in blood platelets lowers the risk of heart failure, protects children from allergies, asthma, and eczema, guards against eye and throat irritation, and strengthens our RBC by lowering cholesterol and enhancing the structure of the RBC membrane (Kaur et al., 2019).

2.7 Palm oil

In palm oil, both saturated and unsaturated fatty acids are present in equal proportions. These fats are made up of 51% SFA, 39% MUFA, and 10% PUFA (mostly linoleic acid) (Ong & Goh, 2002; Wilson et al., 2005). The main SFA in palm oil is palmitic acid, which accounts for 44% of the total fatty acids. Myristic acid and stearic acid make up the remaining 7% of the SFA. Oleic acid makes up the bulk of the MUFA in palm oil. Palm oil contains about 62 mg/g of vitamin E, of which 16 mg/g is made up

of -tocopherol and the remaining 70 mg/g is primarily made up of tocotrienols (Rossi et al., 2001; Sundram et al., 2003; Wilson et al., 2005). According to research, palm oil may possess some anti-arrhythmogenic qualities (Charnock et al., 1991). Palm oil may lessen oxidative stress and have a neutral or beneficial effect on the serum lipid profile as a result of the effects of its fatty acid content and tocotrienols (Hornstra, 1988; Kritchevsky et al., 1999; Ng et al., 1991; Qureshi et al., 1995; Sundram et al., 1997).

2.8 Frying oil effect on human health

Foods taste better after being fried. The use of a lot of oil is required while frying food. Increasing oil intake is not seen to be beneficial for people's health. Fried meals are widely regarded as harmless, despite the fact that several potentially hazardous chemicals are created during frying (such as polar compounds or polymers) (Chao et al., 2004; Frankel, 1983; Wai, 2007). Only after frequent usage can frying oil turn harmful for human consumption (Soriguer et al., 2003). Repeated heating of the oil accelerates the oxidative breakdown of lipids, producing harmful reactive oxygen species and decreasing the natural antioxidant content of the cooking oil. Consuming meals cooked with warmed oil over an extended period of time may seriously weaken one's antioxidant defense system, resulting in diseases including hypertension, diabetes, and vascular inflammation (Clemente & Cahoon, 2009; Edem, 2002; Kamisah et al., 2005). Coronary heart disorders are most likely to occur as a result of lipid oxidation. The imbalance between ant oxidative protection mechanisms and the generation of potent oxidizing chemicals, particularly free radicals, subject the human body to considerable oxidative stress on a daily basis. This stress may impair intracellular signal transmission and harm DNA, proteins, lipids, and carbohydrates (Goswami et al., 2015).

CHAPTER 3

MATERIALS AND METHODS

This experiment was conducted in Department of Applied Chemistry and Chemical Technology; Chattogram Veterinary and Animal Sciences University, Chattogram, Bangladesh.

3.1 Collection of Oil Samples

Total 5 oil samples of different brand were collected from different shops, local vendor and super market of Chattogram Metropolitan Area, Bangladesh. These oil sample are Sunflower seed oil, Olive oil, Palm oil, Mustard oil and Soyabean oil.

3.2 Sample Preparation

Each oil bottle was kept in a dry, cold, and dark location. All the bottles were covered with carbon paper to prevent photo-oxidation. Each and every reagent used was specified and of analytical grade. All the oil samples were prepared for analysis as the method described by Birnin-Yauri and Garba (Birnin-Yauri et al., 2011). Oil Samples were taken directly from the container after inverting it several times.

For the preparation of heated and reheated oil sample, at first potatoes were fried in each type of fresh oil for 5 minutes. Then it was cooled and heated oil sample was separated from fried potatoes. From these heated oil samples necessary amount was separated to check heated oil samples physicochemical properties. Remaining heated oil samples were used again for frying fresh potatoes for 5 minutes. The reheated oil samples were separated and cooled for further testing like heated oil samples.

3.3 Determination of Physicochemical Properties of Oils

All the samples were tested according to AOAC official methods of analysis (21st edition) (AOAC,2019).

3.3.1 Moisture Content

Procedure:

Weighed a previously dried and tared dish about 5-10g of oil or fat which has been thoroughly mixed by stirring. Then, the lid of the dish was loosened and heat was applied, in an oven at 105°C for 1 hour. Removed the dish from the oven and the lid was closed. Cooled it in a desiccator containing phosphorus pentoxide or equivalent desiccant and then weighed. Heated in the oven for a further period of 1 hour, cooled and weighed. We repeated this process until change in weight between two successive observations does not exceed 1 mg. Carried out the determination in duplicate (AOAC,2019).

Moisture and volatile matter = $\frac{W1 \times 100}{W}$

Where,

W1 = Loss in gm of the material on drying

W= Weight in gm of the material taken for test

3.3.2 Specific Gravity

Standardization of Pycnometer:

A cleaning solution containing chromic acid was added to the pycnometer, and it was then allowed to sit for a period of hours. The pycnometer was put in a water bath that was kept at a constant temperature of 30°C after being filled with newly boiled water and cooled to around 20°C. The item was removed, cleaned off using a towel, and weighed after 30 minutes of soaking.

Procedure:

Before applying the prepared oil sample to the side arm of the pycnometer, the cap was removed. The instrument was then filled without any air bubbles being trapped. The container was sealed, and it was left to sit for 30 minutes in a water bath that had been heated to 30°C. Properly cleaned the capillary hole to get rid of any possible oil leaks. Removed the bottle from the water, gave it a thorough rinse, and dried it entirely. When the temperature falls below 30°C, quickly removed the cap from the side arm and weighed quickly (AOAC, 2019).

Calculation:

Specific Gravity, $C = \frac{A-B}{C-B}$

Where,

A = wt. in g of specific gravity bottle filled with oil at 30° C

B = wt. in g of specific gravity bottle at 30°C

C = wt. in g of specific gravity bottle filled with water at 30°C

3.3.3 Saponification Value

Procedure:

To measure saponification value of oil samples, at first 2-3 ml of oil was taken in a round bottom flask. After that, 25 ml of alcoholic potassium hydro-oxide (KOH) was added in round bottom flask. Then one (1) hour of heating of this mixture was done in reflux condenser at 100°C. After cooling it 0.5 ml phenolphthalein indicator was added with this solution. Then it was titrated with 0.5 N hydrochloric acid (HCl). Blank titration was also done in similar ways but without sample (AOAC,2019).

Calculation:

Saponification Value = $\frac{56.1 \times N \times (B-A)}{Weight of sample taken}$

Here,

B = ml of HCl required by blankA = ml of HCl required by oil sampleN = Normality of HCl

3.3.4 Acid Value

Procedure:

At first, 5 ml of oil sample taken in a round bottom flask. 50 ml ethanol was added with it and it was heated for 5 minutes. After cooling this solution 4-5 drops of phenolphthalein indicator were added with it. Then titration was done with 0.1N KOH. Blank titration without sample was also done in the similar way (AOAC,2019).

Calculation:

Acid Value = (56.1*(sample-Blank) *Normality)/ (Weight of sample)

3.3.5 Per-oxide value (PV)

Procedure:

At first, 5 ml of sample was taken in a stoppered conical flask.10 ml chloroform, 15 ml acetic acid and 1 ml of 15% potassium iodide (KI) was added with the sample one by one. Then the stoppered conical flask was placed in a dark place for 5-10 minutes. Then 30 ml distill water and 1-2 drops of slightly boiled starch indicator were added with it. Lastly, titration of this solution was done with 0.1N sodium thiosulphate (Na₂S₂O₃). Similarly blank titration without sample was also done (AOAC,2019).

Standardization of Na₂S₂O₃:

For standardization of sodium thiosulphate ($Na_2S_2O_3$) 10 ml 0.01N K₂Cr₂O₇ was taken in a stoppered conical flask. 1 ml of concentrated HCl and 1 ml of 15% potassium iodide (KI) was added with it. It was kept in a dark place for 10 minutes. 20 ml distill water and 1-2 drops of starch indicator were added with it. Then the solution was titrated with 0.1N Na₂S₂O₃ (AOAC, 2019).

Calculation:

Peroxide Value = ((Titer value of sample-Titer value of blank) *N*100/W

Here,

N= Normality of Sodium thiosulphate

W= Weight of the sample

3.3.6 Iodine Value

Procedure:

At first 1-2 ml of sample was taken in a stoppered conical flask. Then, 10 ml of chloroform and 25 ml of Henus solution was added with it. After that the solution was kept in a dark place for 30 minutes. At the end of this time, 100 ml of distill water and few drops of starch indicator was added with the solution. Then titration with 0.1N sodium thiosulphate (Na₂S₂O₃) was done. Similarly blank titration was done without sample (AOAC, 2019).

Preparation of Hanus Solution:

13.2 gm pure resublime iodine taken in a 500ml volumetric flask. 100 ml acetic acid and 1.5 ml pure bromine (sulfur free) were added with it. After that acetic acid was added with this solution up to 500 ml (AOAC, 2019).

Calculation:

Iodine Value = ((B-S) *Normality*12.69)/ (Weight of sample taken)

Here,

 $B = ml of 0.1N Na_2S_2O_3$ required by blank

S = ml of 0.1N Na2S2O3 required by oil sample

3.4 Statistical Analysis

Statistical data were at first stored in Microsoft excel 2007. Later analyses of these data were carried out using IBM SPSS Statistics Version 26 (IBM Corporation, USA). The results of the experiment are presented as mean \pm SD of measurements. One way analysis of variance (ANOVA) was done and their statistical significance (p < 0.05) was carried out by Tukey's pairwise comparison analysis.

CHAPTER 4

RESULTS

Proper analysis of physico-chemical characteristics of oil is very important for measuring their authenticity, quality, purity and designing an advanced technological process. For proper checkup of physico-chemical characteristics specific gravity, moisture content, saponification value, per-oxide value, acid value and iodine value were tested. These parameters were tested for 5 oil samples-Soyabean oil, Mustard oil, Olive oil, Palm oil and Sunflower oil. Same oil sample was given heat at 180^oC for 10 minutes for two times and these parameters was also tested for heated oil samples too. The result for each type of oil is shown in table 1-table 5.

4.1 Soyabean oil

Table 1 shows that the physicochemical characteristics of soyabean oil changes significantly in heated and reheated condition. Among these physicochemical characteristics of soyabean oil it is found that saponification value and per-oxide value change the most.

 Table 1 : Physicochemical properties of fresh, heated and reheated Soyabean oil
 sample

Parameters	Fresh Oil	Heated Oil	Reheated Oil
Density	0.9020±0.0003 ^a	0.9006±0.0021 ^b	$0.8744 \pm 0.0006^{\circ}$
МС	0.5333±0.0451ª	0.4467 ± 0.2517^{b}	0.3633±0.0208°
SV	182.0233±2.2972 ^c	235.9733±3.4460 ^b	267.7533±2.4601ª
PV	1.6333±0.0551°	3.4733±0.3729 ^b	5.4300±0.2406 ^a
Acid value	0.3567±0.0153°	0.4267 ± 0.0160^{b}	0.4700 ± 0.0200^{a}
Iodine Value	86.3167±0.7637 ^a	65.3500±1.3457 ^b	48.3967±0.7467 ^c

Legends: Values in the same row with the same superscripts but different Means \pm SD are not statistically significant (P<0.05).

a= Highest value, b=medium value, c= lowest value, MC= Moisture Content, SV= Saponification Value, PV= Per-oxide Value.

4.2 Mustard oil

In case of mustard oil sample this investigation showed all the parameters changed significantly due to heating and reheating.

Table 2: Physico-chemical properties of fresh, heated and reheated Mustard oil
sample

Parameters	Fresh Oil	Heated Oil	Reheated Oil
Density	0.9683±0.0101ª	0.9355±0.0105 ^b	0.89±0.01446 ^c
МС	0.2267±0.03215 ^a	0.2233±0.0208 ^b	0.1400±0.0200 ^c
SV	165.8800±6.4254°	202.0100±8.2267 ^b	228.6267±5.9271ª
PV	8.9500±0.1500°	9.6733±0.17898 ^b	11.6433±0.2909ª
Acid value	0.5867±0.0802 ^c	0.7333±0.05132 ^b	0.8767 ± 0.0305^{a}
Iodine Value	77.2000±5.9419ª	66.6667±3.9287 ^b	45.8300±3.3704°

Legends: Values in the same row with the same superscripts but different Means \pm SD are not statistically significant (P<0.05).

a= Highest value, b=medium value and c= lowest value, MC= Moisture Content, SV= Saponification Value, PV= Per-oxide Value.

4.3 Olive oil

The investigation result on physicochemical properties of olive oil is shown in table 3. This table shows that all the physicochemical properties of olive oil changes significantly both in heated and reheated conditions. It also shows that the overall change in physicochemical properties of olive oil due to heat treatment is very small in amount.

Parameters	Fresh Oil	Heated Oil	Reheated Oil
Density	0.9096±0.0027 ^a	0.9038±0.0006 ^b	0.8938±0.0006 ^c
МС	0.1700 ± 0.0100^{b}	0.1900±0.0153 ^a	0.1367±0.01528 ^c
SV	186.5467±1.6590 ^c	199.2467±3.0425 ^b	207.2233±1.7221ª
PV	11.8600±0.6355 ^c	13.4567±0.20257 ^b	14.6667±0.16503 ^a
Acid value	4.3433±0.1301°	4.5800±0.0100 ^b	4.6500±0.0100 ^a
Iodine Value	78.4667±0.9604 ^a	66.2567 ± 0.3525^{b}	58.5000±1.2919 ^c

Table 3: Physico-chemical properties of fresh, heated and reheated Olive oil

Legends: Values in the same row with the same superscripts but different Means \pm SD are not statistically significant (P<0.05).

a= Highest value, b=medium value and c= lowest value, MC= Moisture Content, SV= Saponification Value, PV= Per-oxide Value.

4.4 Palm oil

Table 4 presents the findings of the research that was conducted on the physicochemical characteristics of palm oil. The following table demonstrates that considerable changes take place in all of the physicochemical parameters of palm oil when it is either heated or reheated.

Parameters	Fresh Oil	Heated Oil	Reheated Oil
Density	0.9125±0.0010 ^a	0.9091 ± 0.0005^{b}	0.8527±0.0006°
МС	0.2300±0.0200 ^a	0.1867 ± 0.0153^{b}	0.1367±0.0153°
SV	200.0000±1.5853°	245.5233±1.8045 ^b	272.4067±0.6967 ^a
PV	1.0667±0.0252 ^c	2.7967 ± 0.0306^{b}	4.7933±0.07506 ^a
Acid value	0.9343±0.1528 ^c	0.9867 ± 0.0208^{b}	1.0733 ± 0.0153^{a}
Iodine Value	44.9233±0.2515 ^a	28.4200 ± 0.1900^{b}	17.1267±0.4441°

Table 4: Physico-chemical properties of fresh, heated and reheated Palm oil

Legends: Values in the same row with the same superscripts but different Means \pm SD are not statistically significant (P<0.05).

a= Highest value, b=medium value and c= lowest value, MC= Moisture Content, SV= Saponification Value, PV= Per-oxide Value.

4.5 Sunflower Oil

The results of the study that was carried out on the physicochemical properties of sunflower oil are outlined in Table 5, which can be seen here. The data shown in the accompanying table reveals that when palm oil is subjected to heat treatment, significant changes occur in all of its physicochemical properties.

Parameters	Fresh Oil	Heated Oil	Reheated Oil
Density	0.9241±0.0019 ^a	0.9125 ± 0.0005^{b}	0.9086 ± 0.0002^{c}
MC	0.2067 ± 0.0058^{a}	0.1867±0.0153 ^b	0.1400±0.0100 ^c
SV	191.6967±1.162 ^c	209.1333±0.3677 ^b	219.5000±1.0157 ^a
PV	6.3833±0.0603°	7.5900±0.0400 ^b	8.4867±0.0351 ^a
Acid value	0.9333±0.0200°	0.9867 ± 0.0208^{b}	1.0667 ± 0.0252^{a}
Iodine Value	135.8433±0.3275 ^a	122.8467±0.2854 ^b	115.4667±0.3302 ^c

Table 5: Physico-chemical properties of fresh, heated and reheated Sunflower oil

Legends: Values in the same row with the same superscripts but different Means \pm SD are not statistically significant (P<0.05).

a= Highest value, b=medium value and c= lowest value, MC= Moisture Content, SV= Saponification Value, PV= Per-oxide Value.

Analyzed data showed that the p-values for density, saponification value, peroxide value, acid value and iodine value of all types of oil sample were found lower than 0.05 (p < 0.05). This means that these parameters were significantly different among fresh, heated and reheated condition. But in case of moisture content of mustard oil and sunflower oil the p value was greater than 0.05 (p > 0.05) between fresh and heated condition. So, it meant the moisture content did not have any significant change after 1st time heating for mustard and sunflower oil. As other oils p-values for moisture content in fresh, heated and reheated condition was less than 0.05, it can be told that there was a significant difference of moisture content in fresh, heated and reheated condition of these oils.

CHAPTER 5 DISCUSSION

5.1 Specific Gravity

The density of a liquid was determined by analysis of its specific gravity. Oils with lower density levels are highly valued by consumers. From the resulted tabulated in table 4.1-4.5 shows that in fresh condition soyabean oil and olive oil had lowest density while mustard oil had the highest density. That was due to the bonds that stiffen the bonding and make the rotation between C-C bonds more difficult (Coupland et al., 1997). The table of 4.1-4.5 also shows us that in every type of oil the specific gravity became lower with heating and these heated oil shows further degradation in specific gravity when those were reheated. Oil suffers thermal breakdown when heated, which could cause modifications to its chemical structure and physical characteristics. Oil can vary in density as a result of heating, which could cause the oil to oxidize and produce polar chemicals. Vegetable oil could potentially undergo additional thermal oxidation and breakdown upon heating, altering the density of the oil further. The length and temperature of heating, the kind of cooking method employed, and the original oil quality are all likely to have an impact on the magnitude of these alterations. The oil's composition deteriorated during frying as a result of hydrolysis, oxidation, and polymerization reactions, which reduces the compounds' stability (Gloria & Aguilera, 1998). The results showed that the specific gravity of sunflower shows lowest change both after heating and reheating followed by olive oil and then soyabean oil, palm oil, mustard oil sequentially. That means heating and reheating causes less thermal oxidation in sunflower oil and olive oil when compared with soyabean oil, palm oil and mustard oil which indicates superior quality and positive health impact of sunflower and olive oil.

5.2 Moisture Content

Moisture content helps to determine the decomposition of edible oils (Mengistie et al., 2018a). Because the presence of water in oil causes the triglycerides to hydrolyze, which in turn causes rancidity. Thus, oils must have minimal moisture content to maintain their quality over time (Negash et al., 2019). The higher the moisture content

of the oil, the more it is used for food texturing, baking, and frying, as well as in the industrial production of soaps, detergents, cosmetics, and oil paints (Birnin-Yauri & Garba, 2011). In this sense soyabean oil was the best oil according to the results shown in table 1-5. However, according to the Australian Oil Seed Federation Quality Standards of Technical Information and Typical Analysis, edible oils may contain no more than 0.2% moisture (Federation, 2011). This was only found in the result of sunflower oil and olive oil. Again, sunflower oil and olive showed lowest change in case of moisture content after heating and reheating. So, in case of these two oils quality deteriorate was not that much at heating and reheating condition when compared with other three (3) oils. That made sunflower oil and olive oil more acceptable for human consumption.

5.3 Saponification value

Saponification value (S.V.) is a measure of the molecular weights of the oil's triglycerides. It is inversely related to the fatty acids' average molecular weight or chain length (Mengistie et al., 2018b). Therefore, the shorter the chain length, the higher the S.V. Lower saponification values imply a lower mean molecular weight of fatty acids or a smaller number of ester linkages. This might indicate that the fat molecules did not interact with one another (Firestone, 1994).From the table 1-5 it can be clearly seen that palm oil has highest saponification value followed by sunflower oil, olive oil, soyabean oil and mustard oil sequentially at fresh condition. However, due to heating and reheating the saponification value of palm showed the second most value increase after soyabean oil and olive oil showed the lowest change followed by sunflower oil and mustard oil. That made olive oil and sunflower oil more acceptable to use in frying purpose when compared with mustard oil, palm oil and soyabean oil.

5.4 Peroxide Value

The peroxide value is used to assess how much rancidity reactions took place during storage. Fats and oils can be evaluated for quality and stability using their peroxide value (Gharby et al., 2015). In case of fresh sample of oils, from table 1-table 5 we can see that Olive oil showed the highest peroxide value, followed by mustard oil, sunflower oil, soyabean oil and palm oil one by one. However, due to heating and reheating soyabean oil showed the highest amount of increase in saponification value

and then comes palm oil, olive oil, mustard oil and sunflower oil sequentially. That means sunflower oil showed lowest rancidity due to heating and reheating.

5.5 Acid Value

The amount of free fatty acids in an oil is indicated by its acid value. It assesses the quality of oils. The higher the levels, the less likely the oils are to be utilized for cooking. Higher levels suggest that oil triglycerides are being transformed into fatty acids and glycerol, which induce rancidity (Zahir et al., 2017). From the analyses of the data showed in table 1-5, in fresh condition soyabean has lowest A.V followed by mustard oil, sunflower oil, palm oil and olive oil. That makes olive oil less acceptable for cooking. This has been found also after heating and reheating of all oil types.

5.6 Iodine value

When evaluating the health benefits of oils, the quantity of unsaturated fatty acids is frequently measured in terms of iodine levels. Oils with a greater proportion of saturated fatty acids are less healthful than oils containing a larger percentage of unsaturated fatty acids (Negash et al., 2019). It assesses the oxidation stability of oils and enables for the qualitative determination of the fat's total unsaturation (He et al., 2010). The stronger the oxidative storage stability, the lower the values. Oils undergo oxidative and chemical changes during storage, which result in an increase in free fatty acid content and a decrease in total unsaturation (Perkins, 1992). In fresh condition sunflower oil showed highest value of iodine value which was followed by soyabean oil, olive oil, mustard oil and palm oil. On the other hand, olive oil after heating and reheating shows lowest change in iodine values follower oil are the healthiest oil even after reheating if iodine value is considered.

5.7 Possible Impact on Public Health

In this investigation all fresh oil showed highest amount of density. The higher density means lesser rate of absorption in human body which is good for heart health (Sahasrabudhe et al.,2017). But all reheated oil showed lowest amount of density. Such results indicate that using reheated oil can increase blood cholesterol and heart diseases. In case of moisture content, all reheated oil sample showed lowest moisture content compared to fresh and heated samples. Moisture content determines decomposition of

edible oils. Lower moisture content means the oil is hydrolyzed and become rancid (Robards et al., 1988). Higher saponification value indicates the oil sample has degraded and should be dumped or use for making soap (Te Morenga et al., 2017). All reheated sample showed highest saponification value proving that reheated oil samples can create adverse health impact on our health. In case of per-oxide value, higher value indicates high amount of aldehyde and ketone which makes oil rancid. Rancidity of oils can produce potentially toxic compounds associated with long term health effects like neurological disorders, heart diseases and cancer (Kaleem et al., 2015). All the reheated oil sample showed highest per-oxide value indicating these oils are not suitable for human consumption. Acid value is taken an important indicator of oxidation of oil. Acid values are dependent on free fatty acids, acid phosphate and amino acids. The higher the free fatty acid content the higher the acid value and vice-versa. High free fatty acid content in the oil may cause further oxidation and lead to development of offensive taste and flavor in the oil. Free fatty acids may have toxic effects by increasing reactive oxygen species leading to cell death and necrosis (Arabi et al., 2019; Drako et al., 2014). In this investigation all the reheated oil samples showed highest acid value. This proves that if foods are fried in this oil, it will be very harmful for public health. Iodine value, another important parameter of oil fitness for consumption, is used for measuring degree of unsaturation present in oil. Higher iodine value oils are likely to be healthier for consumption because the risk of cardiovascular disease associated with high consumption of saturated fatty acids which is present in low iodine value oils (Negash et al., 2019). The results of this investigation showed that iodine values of reheated oils were the lowest among fresh, heated and reheated oils. So, frying food items in reheated oil can enhance the risk of cardiovascular diseases.

CHAPTER 6 CONCLUSION

In conclusion, this study has provided valuable insights into the physicochemical properties of edible oil and heated oil, and the changes that occur when oil is reheated. The results show that reheating oil can lead to significant changes in its chemical composition and physical properties, including increased levels of saponification value, peroxide value, acid value and degradation of density, moisture content and iodine value.

The results of this study make it abundantly evident that how edible oils are handled, stored, and heated—both often and for long periods of time—can have a significant impact on their quality. Therefore, it is essential to educate consumers and food service personnel about the importance of using fresh oil and avoiding reheating whenever possible, in order to maintain the nutritional value and safety of the food. The results of this study also have important ramifications for public health because eating rancid or degraded oils has been associated with a number of negative health outcomes, such as oxidative stress, inflammation, and an increased risk of chronic illnesses like cancer and cardiovascular disease. Additionally, the production and disposal of waste oil is a major environmental concern, further underscoring the importance of minimizing oil degradation through proper handling and storage.

One of the limitations of this study is that it focused on a limited number of heating conditions, and further research is needed to explore the effects of different types of oils and cooking methods. Moreover, future studies should investigate the impact of using alternative methods of reheating, such as microwaving or sous vide cooking, which may be less detrimental to oil quality compared to traditional frying.

Despite these limitations, the findings of this study have important implications for the food industry, food service providers, and consumers, highlighting the need for greater awareness of the risks associated with reheating oil and the importance of using fresh oil whenever possible. By taking steps to improve oil quality and reduce waste, we can ensure a safer and more sustainable food supply for ourselves and future generations.

CHAPTER 7

Recommendation and Future aspect

Based on the findings of this study, there are several recommendations that can be made to improve the quality and safety of edible oils:

- 1. Educating consumers and food service personnel about the importance of using fresh oil and avoiding reheating whenever possible.
- 2. Implementing more effective methods for monitoring and controlling the quality of oil in food service settings, such as routine testing for polar compounds.
- 3. Exploring alternative methods of reheating, such as microwaving or sous vide cooking, which may be less detrimental to oil quality compared to traditional frying or sautéing.
- 4. Encouraging the development of new, more stable varieties of edible oil that are less prone to degradation and rancidity.
- 5. Improving regulations and guidelines for the storage and handling of edible oils, both in the food industry and in the home.

In terms of future research, there are several areas that could be explored to build upon the findings of this study:

- 1. Investigating the effects of different types of oils and cooking methods on oil quality, including the use of unconventional oils such as algae or insect oils.
- 2. Developing more accurate and reliable methods for measuring the levels of polar compounds and other markers of oil degradation.
- 3. Studying the long-term effects of consuming degraded or rancid oils on human health, including the role of oxidative stress and inflammation in disease progression.
- 4. Examining the environmental impact of waste oil disposal and exploring new methods for recycling and repurposing used oils.

By pursuing these research directions, we can deepen our understanding of the physicochemical properties of edible oils and work towards a more sustainable and healthy food supply for all.

References

- AbuGhazaleh, A. A., Felton, D. O., & Ibrahim, S. A. (2007). Milk Conjugated Linoleic Acid Response to Fish Oil and Sunflower Oil Supplementation to Dairy Cows Managed Under Two Feeding Systems. *Journal of Dairy Science*, 90(10), 4763– 4769.
- Aguilera, C. M., Mesa, M. D., Ramirez-Tortosa, M. C., Nestares, M. T., Ros, E., & Gil, A. (2004). Sunflower oil does not protect against LDL oxidation as virgin olive oil does in patients with peripheral vascular disease. *Clinical Nutrition*, 23(4), 673– 681.
- Ahmad Tarmizi, A. H., & Ismail, R. (2008). Comparison of the Frying Stability of Standard Palm Olein and Special Quality Palm Olein. *Journal of the American Oil Chemists' Society*, 85(3), 245–251.
- Alimentarius, C. (1999). Codex standard for named vegetable oils. *Codex stan*, 210, 1-13.
- Allam, Z., Bibri, S. E., & Sharpe, S. A. (2022). The rising impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic and the Russia–Ukraine war: energy transition, climate justice, global inequality, and supply chain disruption. *Resources*, 11(11), 99.
- Andrikopoulos, N. K., Kalogeropoulos, N., Falirea, A., & Barbagianni, M. N. (2002). Performance of virgin olive oil and vegetable shortening during domestic deepfrying and pan-frying of potatoes. *International Journal of Food Science & Technology*, 37(2), 177–190.
- AOAC (2019) Official Methods of Analysis of the Association of Official Analytical Chemists: Official Methods of Analysis of AOAC International. 21st Edition, AOAC, Washington DC.
- Arabi, Y. M., Tamimi, W., Jones, G., Jawdat, D., Tamim, H., Al-Dorzi, H. M., Sadat, M., Afesh, L., Shkhija, M., & Al-Dawood, A. (2019). Free fatty acids' level and nutrition in critically ill patients and association with outcomes: a prospective substudy of PermiT trial. *Nutrients*, 11(2), 384.
- Baeza, I., de Castro, N. M., Díaz, L. E., Marcos, A., & de la Fuente, M. (2008). Effect of oil (sunflower oil) consumption with added hydroxytyrosol (natural

antioxidant) on antioxidant variables in leucocytes from healthy adults. *Proceedings of the Nutrition Society*, 67(OCE1), E26.

- Ben Hassen, T., & El Bilali, H. (2022). Impacts of the Russia-Ukraine war on global food security: towards more sustainable and resilient food systems?. *Foods*, 11(15), 2301.
- Bendsen, N. T., Chabanova, E., Thomsen, H. S., Larsen, T. M., Newman, J. W., Stender, S., Dyerberg, J., Haugaard, S. B., & Astrup, A. (2011). Effect of trans fatty acid intake on abdominal and liver fat deposition and blood lipids: a randomized trial in overweight postmenopausal women. *Nutrition & Diabetes*, *1*(1), e4–e4.
- Bester, D., Esterhuyse, A. J., Truter, E. J., & van Rooyen, J. (2010a). Cardiovascular effects of edible oils: a comparison between four popular edible oils. *Nutrition Research Reviews*, 23(2), 334–348.
- Bester, D., Esterhuyse, A. J., Truter, E. J., & van Rooyen, J. (2010b). Cardiovascular effects of edible oils: a comparison between four popular edible oils. *Nutrition Research Reviews*, 23(2), 334–348.
- Bhattacharya, A. B., Sajilata, M. G., Tiwari, S. R., & Singhal, R. S. (2008). Regeneration of thermally polymerized frying oils with adsorbents. *Food Chemistry*, 110(3), 562–570.
- Birnin-Yauri, U. A., & Garba, S. (2011). Comparative Studies on some physicochemical properties of baobab, vegetable, peanut and palm oils. *Nigerian Journal of Basic and Applied Sciences*, 19(1).
- Bou, R., Navas, J. A., Tres, A., Codony, R., & Guardiola, F. (2012). Quality assessment of frying fats and fried snacks during continuous deep-fat frying at different largescale producers. *Food Control*, 27(1), 254–267.
- Carrasco-Pancorbo, A., Cerretani, L., Bendini, A., Segura-Carretero, A., del Carlo, M.,
 Gallina-Toschi, T., Lercker, G., Compagnone, D., & Fernandez-Gutierrez, A. (2005). Evaluation of the antioxidant capacity of individual phenolic compounds in virgin olive oil. *Journal of Agricultural and Food Chemistry*, 53(23), 8918–8925.

- Cartter, J. L., & Hopper, T. H. (1942). *Influence of variety, environment, and fertility level on the chemical composition of soybean seed.*
- Chao, P., Hsu, S., Lin, F., Li, Y., & Huang, C. (2004). The up-regulation of hepatic acyl-coA oxidase and cytochrome P450 4A1 mRNA expression by dietary oxidized frying oil is comparable between male and female rats. *Lipids*, 39(3), 233–238.
- Charnock, J. S., Sundram, K., Abeywardena, M. Y., McLennan, P. L., & Tan, D. T. (1991). Dietary fats and oils in cardiac arrythmia in rats. *The American Journal of Clinical Nutrition*, 53(4), 1047S-1049S.
- Choe, E., & Min, D. B. (2007). Chemistry of deep-fat frying oils. *Journal of Food Science*, 72(5), R77–R86.
- Chow, C. K. (2007). *Fatty acids in foods and their health implications* (pp. 237–262). CRC press.
- Chow, C. K., & Gupta, M. K. (1994). Treatment, oxidation and health aspects of fats and oils. *Technological Advances in Improved and Alternative Sources of Lipids*, 329–359.
- Clemente, T. E., & Cahoon, E. B. (2009). Soybean oil: genetic approaches for modification of functionality and total content. *Plant Physiology*, 151(3), 1030– 1040.
- Coupland, J. N., & McClements, D. J. (1997). Physical properties of liquid edible oils. *Journal of the American Oil Chemists' Society*, 74, 1559-1564.
- Darko, J. O. (2014). Quality assessment of moisture content, free fatty acids and acid value of coconut oil produced in the Jomoro District of the Western Region of Ghana.
- Das, S., Lekli, I., Das, M., Szabo, G., Varadi, J., Juhasz, B., Bak, I., Nesaretam, K., Tosaki, A., Powell, S. R., & Das, D. K. (2008). Cardioprotection with palm oil tocotrienols: comparision of different isomers. *American Journal of Physiology-Heart and Circulatory Physiology*, 294(2), H970–H978.

- Das, U. N. (2006). Essential fatty acids: biochemistry, physiology and pathology. Biotechnology Journal: Healthcare Nutrition Technology, 1(4), 420–439.
- Díaz, L. E., Gómez, S., Nova, E., Romeo, J., & Marcos, A. (2008). Immunomodulation and antioxidant capacity of hydroxytyrosol present at oleic acid-rich sunflower oil. *Proceedings of the Nutrition Society*, 67(OCE1), E2.
- Dineshkumar, B., Mukherjee, S., Pradhan, R., Mitra, A., & Chakraborty, C. (2009). Effects of edible oils in type 2 diabetes mellitus. *Journal of Clinical and Diagnostic Research*, 3(2), 1389–1394.
- Diniz, Y. S. A., Cicogna, A. C., Padovani, C. R., Santana, L. S., Faine, L. A., & Novelli,
 E. L. B. (2004). Diets rich in saturated and polyunsaturated fatty acids: metabolic shifting and cardiac health. *Nutrition*, 20(2), 230–234.
- Dobarganes, C., Márquez-Ruiz, G., & Velasco, J. (2000). Interactions between fat and food during deep-frying. *European Journal of Lipid Science and Technology*, 102(8-9), 521–528.
- Edem, D. O. (2002). Palm oil: Biochemical, physiological, nutritional, hematological and toxicological aspects: A review. *Plant Foods for Human Nutrition*, 57, 319– 341.
- Eder, E., Wacker, M., Lutz, U., Nair, J., Fang, X., Bartsch, H., Beland, F. A., Schlatter, J., & Lutz, W. K. (2006a). Oxidative stress related DNA adducts in the liver of female rats fed with sunflower-, rapeseed-, olive- or coconut oil supplemented diets. *Chemico-Biological Interactions*, 159(2), 81–89.
- Eder, E., Wacker, M., Lutz, U., Nair, J., Fang, X., Bartsch, H., Beland, F. A., Schlatter, J., & Lutz, W. K. (2006b). Oxidative stress related DNA adducts in the liver of female rats fed with sunflower-, rapeseed-, olive- or coconut oil supplemented diets. *Chemico-Biological Interactions*, 159(2), 81–89.
- Federation, A. O. (2011). Section 1: Quality standards, technical information & typical analysis. Australian Oilseeds Federation, Australia Square, 40–45.
- Ferrara, L. A., Raimondi, A. S., d'Episcopo, L., Guida, L., Russo, A. dello, & Marotta, T. (2000). Olive oil and reduced need for antihypertensive medications. *Archives* of Internal Medicine, 160(6), 837–842.

- Firestone, D. (1994). Determination of the iodine value of oils and fats: summary of collaborative study. *Journal of AOAC International*, 77(3), 674–676.
- Frankel, E. N. (1983). Volatile lipid oxidation products. *Progress in Lipid Research*, 22(1), 1–33.
- Gertz, C., & Matthäus, B. (2008). Optimum deep-frying. DGF (Eds.).
- Gharby, S., Harhar, H., Guillaume, D., Roudani, A., Boulbaroud, S., Ibrahimi, M., Ahmad, M., Sultana, S., Hadda, T. ben, Chafchaouni-Moussaoui, I., & Charrouf, Z. (2015). Chemical investigation of Nigella sativa L. seed oil produced in Morocco. *Journal of the Saudi Society of Agricultural Sciences*, 14(2), 172–177.
- Girardet, M., Jacotot, B., Mendy, F., Piganeau, P., & Beaumont, J. L. (1977). Effects of edible oils on blood and arterial lipids in rats after one year's balanced normolipidic diet. *Journal of Medicine*, 8(3–4), 261–278.
- Gloria, H., & Aguilera, J. M. (1998). Assessment of the quality of heated oils by differential scanning calorimetry. *Journal of Agricultural and Food Chemistry*, 46(4), 1363–1368.
- Gómez Caravaca, A. M., Carrasco Pancorbo, A., Cañabate Díaz, B., Segura Carretero, A., & Fernández Gutiérrez, A. (2005). Electrophoretic identification and quantitation of compounds in the polyphenolic fraction of extra-virgin olive oil. *ELECTROPHORESIS*, 26(18), 3538–3551.
- Goswami, G., Bora, R., & Rathore, M. (2015). OXIDATION OF COOKING OILS DUE TO REPEATED FRYING AND HUMAN HEALTH.
- Grace, O. M., Borus, D. J., & Bosch, C. H. (2008). Vegetable oils of tropical Africa. Conclusions and recommendations based on PROTA 14: vegetable oils. *Vegetable Oils of Tropical Africa. Conclusions and Recommendations Based on PROTA 14: Vegetable Oils.*
- Gunstone, F. (2009). The Chemical Nature of Lipids. In *Oils and fats in the food industry* (p. 1). John Wiley & Sons.

- Hassan Gilani, A., Khan, A.-U., Jabbar Shah, A., Connor, J., & Jabeen, Q. (2005).
 Blood pressure lowering effect of olive is mediated through calcium channel blockade. *International Journal of Food Sciences and Nutrition*, 56(8), 613–620.
- He, L., Guoying, Z., Huaiyun, Z., & Yuanhao, H. (2010). Chemical constituents and biological activities of saponin from the seed of Camellia oleifera. *Scientific Research and Essays*, 5(25), 4088–4092.
- Hornstra, G. (1988). Dietary lipids and cardiovascular disease: effects of palm oil. *Oleagineux (France)*.
- Ilyas, S. (2016). Peroxides and Saponification Value to Some Packaging of Palm Oil after Frying Repeatedly. *International Journal of Pharm Tech Research, ISSN*, 974–4304.
- Jagtap, S., Trollman, H., Trollman, F., Garcia-Garcia, G., Parra-López, C., Duong, L., ... & Afy-Shararah, M. (2022). The Russia-Ukraine conflict: Its implications for the global food supply chains. *Foods*, 11(14), 2098.
- Kaleem, A., Aziz, S., & Iqtedar, M. (2015). Investigating changes and effect of peroxide values in cooking oils subject to light and heat. *FUUAST Journal of Biology*, 5(2), 191-196.
- Kamisah, Y., Adam, A., Ngah, W. Z. W., Gapor, M. T., Azizah, O., & Marzuki, A. (2005). Chronic intake of red palm olein and palm olein produce beneficial effects on plasma lipid profile in rats. *Pakistan Journal of Nutrition*, 4(2), 89–96.
- Kaur, R., Sharma, A. K., Rani, R., Mawlong, I., & Rai, P. K. (2019). Medicinal qualities of mustard oil and its role in human health against chronic diseases: a review. *Asian Journal of Dairy and Food Research*, 38(2), 98–104.
- Keys, A., Mienotti, A., Karvonen, M. J., Aravanis, C., Blackburn, H., Buzina, R., Djordjevic, B. S., Dontas, A. S., Fidanza, F., & Keys, M. H. (1986). The diet and 15-year death rate in the seven countries study. *American Journal of Epidemiology*, 124(6), 903–915.
- Kritchevsky, D. (2000). Impact of red palm oil on human nutrition and health. *Food and Nutrition Bulletin*, *21*(2), 182–188.

- Kritchevsky, D., Tepper, S. A., & Kuksis, A. (1999). Effects of palm oil, randomized palm oil and red palm oil on experimental atherosclerosis. *FASEB JOURNAL*, *13*(4), A213–A213.
- Kyriakidis, N. B., & Katsiloulis, T. (2000). Calculation of iodine value from measurements of fatty acid methyl esters of some oils: Comparison with the relevant American Oil Chemists Society method. *Journal of the American Oil Chemists' Society*, 77(12), 1235–1238.
- Lambert, E. v, Goedecke, J. H., Bluett, K., Heggie, K., Claassen, A., Rae, D. E., West, S., Dugas, J., Dugas, L., Meltzeri, S., Charlton, K., & Mohede, I. (2007).
 Conjugated linoleic acid versus high-oleic acid sunflower oil: effects on energy metabolism, glucose tolerance, blood lipids, appetite and body composition in regularly exercising individuals. *The British Journal of Nutrition*, 97(5), 1001–1011.
- Lands, W. E. M. (2019). Essential fatty acid metabolism to self-healing agents. In *Healthful Lipids* (pp. 204–220). AOCS Publishing.
- Larsen, L. F., Jespersen, J., & Marckmann, P. (1999). Are olive oil diets antithrombotic? Diets enriched with olive, rapeseed, or sunflower oil affect postprandial factor VII differently. *The American Journal of Clinical Nutrition*, 70(6), 976–982.
- Lees, R. S. (2020). Impact of dietary fat on human health. In *Omega-3 fatty acids in health and disease* (pp. 2–38). CRC Press.
- Lercker, G., & Rodriguez-Estrada, M. T. (2000). Chromatographic analysis of unsaponifiable compounds of olive oils and fat-containing foods. *Journal of Chromatography A*, 881(1–2), 105–129.
- Lin, S., Akoh, C. C., & Reynolds, A. E. (2001). Recovery of used frying oils with adsorbent combinations: refrying and frequent oil replenishment. *Food Research International*, 34(2–3), 159–166.
- Luzzi, L. A., & Gerraughty, R. J. (1964). Effects of Selected Variables on the Extractability of Oils from Coacervate Capsules. *Journal of Pharmaceutical Sciences*, 53(4), 429–431.

- Manna, C., Migliardi, V., Golino, P., Scognamiglio, A., Galletti, P., Chiariello, M., & Zappia, V. (2004). Oleuropein prevents oxidative myocardial injury induced by ischemia and reperfusion. *The Journal of Nutritional Biochemistry*, 15(8), 461– 466. https://doi.org/10.1016/J.JNUTBIO.2003.12.010
- Mengistie, T., Alemu, A., & Mekonnen, A. (2018a). Comparison of physicochemical properties of edible vegetable oils commercially available in Bahir Dar, Ethiopia. *Chemistry International*, 4(2), 130–135.
- Mengistie, T., Alemu, A., & Mekonnen, A. (2018b). Comparison of physicochemical properties of edible vegetable oils commercially available in Bahir Dar, Ethiopia. *Chemistry International*, 4(2), 130–135.
- Messina, M., Shearer, G., & Petersen, K. (2021). Soybean oil lowers circulating cholesterol levels and coronary heart disease risk, and has no effect on markers of inflammation and oxidation. *Nutrition*, 89, 111343.
- Meydani, S. N., Lichtenstein, A. H., White, P. J., Goodnight, S. H., Elson, C. E., Woods, M., Gorbach, S. L., & Schaefer, E. J. (1991). Food use and health effects of soybean and sunflower oils. *Journal of the American College of Nutrition*, 10(5), 406–428.
- Montedoro, G., Servili, M., Baldioli, M., Selvaggini, R., Miniati, E., & Macchioni, A. (1993). Simple and hydrolyzable compounds in virgin olive oil. 3. Spectroscopic characterizations of the secoiridoid derivatives. *Journal of Agricultural and Food Chemistry*, 41(11), 2228–2234.
- Mozaffarian, D., Katan, M. B., Ascherio, A., Stampfer, M. J., & Willett, W. C. (2006). Trans fatty acids and cardiovascular disease. *New England Journal of Medicine*, 354(15), 1601–1613.
- Navarro, M. D., Hortelano, P., Periago, J. L., & Pita, M. L. (1992). Effect of dietary olive and sunflower oils on the lipid composition of the aorta and platelets and on blood eicosanoids in rats. *Arteriosclerosis and Thrombosis: A Journal of Vascular Biology*, 12(7), 830–835.
- Nayak, P. K., Dash, U., & Rayaguru, K. (2016). Quality assessment of mustard oil in deep fat frying. *Asian Journal of Dairy and Food Research*, *35*(2), 168–171.

- Negash, Y. A., Amare, D. E., Bitew, B. D., & Dagne, H. (2019). Assessment of quality of edible vegetable oils accessed in Gondar City, Northwest Ethiopia. *BMC Research Notes*, 12(1), 1–5.
- Newaz, M. A., Yousefipour, Z., Nawal, N. N., & Adeeb, N. (2003). Nitric oxide synthase activity in blood vessels of spontaneously hypertensive rats: antioxidant protection by gamma-tocotrienol. *Journal of Physiology and Pharmacology*, 54(3), 319–327.
- Newmark, H. L. (1997). Squalene, olive oil, and cancer risk: a review and hypothesis. Cancer Epidemiology, Biomarkers & Prevention : A Publication of the American Association for Cancer Research, Cosponsored by the American Society of Preventive Oncology, 6(12), 1101–1103.
- Ng, T. K., Hassan, K., Lim, J. B., Lye, M. S., & Ishak, R. (1991). Nonhypercholesterolemic effects of a palm-oil diet in Malaysian volunteers. *The American Journal of Clinical Nutrition*, 53(4), 1015S-1020S.
- Nydahl, M., Gustafsson, I. B., Ohrvall, M., & Vessby, B. (1994). Similar serum lipoprotein cholesterol concentrations in healthy subjects on diets enriched with rapeseed and with sunflower oil. *European Journal of Clinical Nutrition*, 48(2), 128–137.
- O'Brien, R. D. (2008). Fats and Oils. CRC Press.
- O'Farrell, S., & Jackson, M. J. (1997). Dietary polyunsaturated fatty acids, vitamin E and hypoxia/reoxygenation-induced damage to cardiac tissue. *Clinica Chimica Acta*, 267(2), 197–211.
- Ong, A. S. H., & Goh, S. H. (2002). Palm oil: a healthful and cost-effective dietary component. *Food and Nutrition Bulletin*, 23(1), 11–22.
- Owen, R. W., Mier, W., Giacosa, A., Hull, W. E., Spiegelhalder, B., & Bartsch, H. (2000). Phenolic compounds and squalene in olive oils: the concentration and antioxidant potential of total phenols, simple phenols, secoiridoids, lignansand squalene. *Food and Chemical Toxicology*, 38(8), 647–659.
- Pardeshi, Dr. S. (2020). Studies on physicochemical and deteriorated properties of different brands of mustard oils at room temp and after heated at 180°C.

- Perkins, E. G. (1992). *Effect of lipid oxidation on oil and food quality in deep frying*. ACS Publications.
- Perona, J. S., Cabello-Moruno, R., & Ruiz-Gutierrez, V. (2006). The role of virgin olive oil components in the modulation of endothelial function. *The Journal of Nutritional Biochemistry*, 17(7), 429–445.
- Population and Housing Census 2022, Post Enumeration Check (PEC) Adjusted Population, National Bangladesh Bureau of Statistics and Informatics division. Ministry of Planning Government of the People's Republic of Bangladesh (2022). www.bbs.portal.gov.bd
- Quiles, J. L., Ochoa, J. J., Ramirez-Tortosa, C., Battino, M., Huertas, J. R., Martín, Y., & Mataix, J. (2004). Dietary fat type (virgin olive vs. sunflower oils) affects agerelated changes in DNA double-strand-breaks, antioxidant capacity and blood lipids in rats. *Experimental Gerontology*, 39(8), 1189–1198. https://doi.org/10.1016/J.EXGER.2004.05.002
- Qureshi, A. A., Bradlow, B. A., Brace, L., Manganello, J., Peterson, D. M., Pearce, B. C., Wright, J. J. K., Gapor, A., & Elson, C. E. (1995). Response of hypercholesterolemic subjects to administration of tocotrienols. *Lipids*, 30(12), 1171–1177.
- Relas, H., Gylling, H., & Miettinen, T. A. (2000). Dietary squalene increases cholesterol synthesis measured with serum non-cholesterol sterols after a single oral dose in humans. *Atherosclerosis*, 152(2), 377–383.
- Robards, K., Kerr, A. F., & Patsalides, E. (1988). Rancidity and its measurement in edible oils and snack foods. A review. *Analyst*, *113*(2), 213-224.
- Romero, C., Medina, E., Vargas, J., Brenes, M., & de Castro, A. (2007). In vitro activity of olive oil polyphenols against Helicobacter pylori. *Journal of Agricultural and Food Chemistry*, 55(3), 680–686.
- Rossi, M., Gianazza, M., Alamprese, C., & Stanga, F. (2001). The effect of bleaching and physical refining on color and minor components of palm oil. *Journal of the American Oil Chemists' Society*, 78(10), 1051–1055.

- Sahasrabudhe, S. N., Rodriguez-Martinez, V., O'Meara, M., & Farkas, B. E. (2017). Density, viscosity, and surface tension of five vegetable oils at elevated temperatures: Measurement and modeling. *International journal of food properties*, 20(sup2), 1965-1981.
- Simopoulos, A. P. (1991). Omega-3 fatty acids in health and disease and in growth and development. *The American Journal of Clinical Nutrition*, *54*(3), 438–463.
- Simopoulos, A. P. (1999). Essential fatty acids in health and chronic disease. *The American Journal of Clinical Nutrition*, 70(3), S560–S569.
- Soriguer, F., Rojo-Martínez, G., Dobarganes, M. C., García Almeida, J. M., Esteva, I., Beltrán, M., Ruiz De Adana, M. S., Tinahones, F., Gómez-Zumaquero, J. M., & García-Fuentes, E. (2003). Hypertension is related to the degradation of dietary frying oils. *The American Journal of Clinical Nutrition*, 78(6), 1092–1097.
- Sundram, K., Ismail, A., Hayes, K. C., Jeyamalar, R., & Pathmanathan, R. (1997). Trans (elaidic) fatty acids adversely affect the lipoprotein profile relative to specific saturated fatty acids in humans. *The Journal of Nutrition*, 127(3), 514S-520S.
- Sundram, K., Sambanthamurthi, R., & Tan, Y.-A. (2003). Palm fruit chemistry and nutrition. *Asia Pacific Journal of Clinical Nutrition*, *12*(3).
- Te Morenga, L., & Montez, J. M. (2017). Health effects of saturated and trans-fatty acid intake in children and adolescents: Systematic review and meta-analysis. *PloS one*, *12*(11), e0186672.
- Tesfaye, B., & Abebaw, A. (2016). *Physico-Chemical Characteristics and Level of Some Selected Metal in Edible Oils*.
- Theriault, A., Chao, J. T., Wang, Q., Gapor, A., & Adeli, K. (1999). Tocotrienol: a review of its therapeutic potential. *Clinical Biochemistry*, *32*(5), 309–319.
- Tuck, K. L., & Hayball, P. J. (2002). Major phenolic compounds in olive oil: metabolism and health effects. *The Journal of Nutritional Biochemistry*, 13(11), 636–644.

- Turpeinen, A. M., Basu, S., & Mutanen, M. (1998). A high linoleic acid diet increases oxidative stress in vivo and affects nitric oxide metabolism in humans. *Prostaglandins, Leukotrienes, and Essential Fatty Acids*, 59(3), 229–233.
- Visioli, F., Poli, A., & Gall, C. (2002). Antioxidant and other biological activities of phenols from olives and olive oil. *Medicinal Research Reviews*, 22(1), 65–75.
- Wahle, K. W. J., Caruso, D., Ochoa, J. J., & Quiles, J. L. (2004). Olive oil and modulation of cell signaling in disease prevention. *Lipids*, 39(12), 1223–1231.
- Wai, T. (2007). Local repeatedly used deep-frying oils are generally safe. Int J Sci Med Educ, 1, 55–60.
- Wilson, T. A., Nicolosi, R. J., Kotyla, T., Sundram, K., & Kritchevsky, D. (2005). Different palm oil preparations reduce plasma cholesterol concentrations and aortic cholesterol accumulation compared to coconut oil in hypercholesterolemic hamsters. *The Journal of Nutritional Biochemistry*, 16(10), 633–640.
- Yadav, R. P., & Kumari, B. (2013). Ultrasonic studies on mustard oil: A critical review. *International Journal of Science and Research*, 4(8), 517.
- Yunus, W. M. M. (2009). Refractive index and fourier transform infrared spectra of virgin coconut oil and virgin olive oil. *American Journal of Applied Sciences*, 6(2), 328.
- Zahir, E., Saeed, R., Hameed, M. A., & Yousuf, A. (2017). Study of physicochemical properties of edible oil and evaluation of frying oil quality by Fourier Transform-Infrared (FT-IR) Spectroscopy. *Arabian Journal of Chemistry*, 10, S3870–S3876.
- Zayas, J. F., & Zayas, J. F. (1997). Oil and fat binding properties of proteins. *Functionality of Proteins in Food*, 228–259.
- Zhao, Q., Xu, Y., & Liu, Y. (2022). Soybean oil bodies: A review on composition, properties, food applications, and future research aspects. *Food Hydrocolloids*, 124, 107296.

Apendices

Appendix-I: Photo Gallery

a) Sample Preparation



1=Olive oil, 2= Soyabean oil, 3= Sunflower oil, 4= Palm oil, 5= Mustard Oil

b) Experiments



Acid Value Test Endpoint



Iodine Value Test Endpoint



Peroxide Value Endpoint



Saponification test Endpoint

Brief Biography

Sushmita Roy Chowdhury achieved a grade point average (GPA) of 5.00 on the Secondary School Certificate (SSC) Exams in 2012 and a GPA of 5.00 on the Higher Secondary Certificate (HSC) Examinations in 2014. She graduated from Chattogram Veterinary and Animal Sciences University (CVASU), Bangladesh, with a B.Sc. (Hons) in Food Science and Technology in 2019 (held in 2020). She is currently a candidate for the MS in Masters of Public Health under the One Health Institute at CVASU. She finds her interest & career objective is to work in research and development. She has a strong desire to work in a demanding setting where her capacity for creative problem-solving may be put to good use.